
  
 

     
 
 
 
 

BEACH 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
Advanced Meeting Package 

 
Regular Meeting 

 
Monday 

February 9, 2026 
6:00 p.m. 

 
Location: 

12788 Meritage Blvd., 
Jacksonville, FL 32246 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Note:  The Advanced Meeting Package is a working document and thus all materials are 
considered DRAFTS prior to presentation and Board acceptance, approval, or adoption. 

 



Beach 
Community Development District 
 

  
 

250 International Parkway, Suite 208 
Lake Mary, FL 32746 
321-263-0132  

 
 

 
Board of Supervisors  
Beach Community Development District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Beach Community Development District is 
scheduled for Monday, February 9, 2026, at 6:00 p.m. at the 12788 Meritage Blvd., Jacksonville, 
FL 32246 
 
An advanced copy of the agenda for the meeting is attached along with associated documentation for 
your review and consideration.  Any additional support material will be distributed at the meeting. 
 
Should you have any questions regarding the agenda, please contact me at (321) 263-0132 X-193 or 
dmcinnes@vestapropertyservices.com . We look forward to seeing you at the meeting. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

David McInnes 
David McInnes 
District Manager 
 
 
 
 
Cc: Attorney  

Engineer 
District Records 

 

mailto:dmcinnes@dpfgmc.com


Page 1 of 3 
 

Beach Community Development District 
Meeting Date: Monday, February 9, 2026 Call-in Number: +1 (929) 205-6099 
Time: 6:00 PM Meeting ID: 705 571 4830# 
Location: 12788 Meritage Blvd., 

Jacksonville, FL 32246 
 (Listen Only) 

 

Revised Agenda 

I. Roll Call  
II. Pledge of Allegiance  
III. Audience Comments – (limited to 3 minutes per individual for 

agenda items)   
 

IV. Presentation of Proof of Publication(s) Exhibit 1 
Pg. 6 

V. Vendor Reports – Questions from Board Members Only  
A. Ruppert Landscape LLC/Tree Amigos Outdoor Services  
B. The Greenery, Inc. – Client Communication Report Exhibit 2 

Pgs. 9-32 
C. Vesta Property Services  

1. Lifestyle Management Report Exhibit 3 
Pgs. 34-40  

2. Field Management Report Exhibit 4 
Pgs. 42-46  

VI. Staff Reports – Questions from Board Members Only  
A. District Counsel  
B. District Engineer  
C. District Manager  

1. Resident(s) Subject to Disciplinary Action  
2. Complaint & Incident Management Tracker  
3. Action Item Report Exhibit 5 

Pgs. 48-51  
4. Meeting Matrix  Exhibit 6 

Pgs. 53-59 
VII. Consent Agenda  

A. Consideration for Approval – The Minutes of the Board of 
Supervisors Regular Meeting Held on January 12, 2026 

Exhibit 7 
Pgs. 61-66  

B. Consideration for Approval – The Minutes of the Board of 
Supervisors Workshop Held on February 5, 2026  

Exhibit 8 
Pgs. 68-71 

C. Ratification of Tekwave Solutions LLC – Purchase of Scanner 
for Guard House - $1,650.00 

Exhibit 9 
Pg. 73  



Page 2 of 3 
 

VII. Consent Agenda – continued   

D. Approval of the Painting of Tamaya Hall Interior Proposal--360 
Painting - $2,993.90 (CIP-Future Year; Line 8; CRF--from the 
2/5/2026 workshop) 

Exhibit 10 
Pgs. 75-77 

 

E. Approval of the Fitness Room Drinking Fountain Proposal--
Ideal Conditions Heating & Air Conditioning, Inc. - $4,525.00 
(Contingency; Line 9; CRF--from the 2/5/2026 workshop) 

Exhibit 11 
Pg. 79 

 

F. Approval of the Preventative Maintenance on AC Units 
Proposal-- Buehler AC & Plumbing - $1,794.00 (Community 
and Amenity Repairs; Line 38; GF--from the 2/5/2026 
workshop) 

Exhibit 12 
Pgs. 81-82 

 

G. Approval of the Exterior Window Cleaning for Tamaya Hall & 
Palm Court Proposal-- Squeegee Squad - $2,000.00 
(Community and Amenity Repairs; Line 38; GF--from the 
2/5/2026 workshop) 

Exhibit 13 
Pgs. 84-85 

 

H. Approval of the Purchase of an Ice Machine Not to Exceed 
$2000.00 (Contingency; Line 9; CRF--from the 2/5/2026 
workshop) 

 

I. Approval to Begin Landscape Maintenance Contract with The 
Greenery, Inc. on 4/1/2026 (from the 2/5/2026 workshop) 

 

J. Approval for Purchase of Tamaya Hall Furniture & Disposal of 
Current Furniture at Annual Garage Sale --$18,500 (CIP-Future 
Year; Line 8; CRF--from the 2/5/2026 workshop) 

 

VIII. Business Items  
A. Consideration & Approval of Terminating Landscape 

Maintenance Contract with Tree Amigos/Ruppert on 3/31/2026 
(from the 2/5/2026 workshop) 

Exhibit 14 
Pgs. 87-127 

 

B. Approval to Amend Current Agreement with Vlademyros 
Mavropoulos-Stoliarenko to Apply to Residents Only Effective 
4/1/2026 (from the 2/5/2026 workshop) 

Exhibit 15 
Pgs. 129-137 

C. Consideration & Approval of Accepting Parcels from Tamaya 
Loan Acquisition LLC via Special Warranty Deeds 

Exhibit 16 
 

1. Parcel #4 Exhibit 16A 
Pgs. 140-144 

2. Parcel #6 Exhibit 16B 
Pgs. 146-155 

3. Parcel #7 Exhibit 16C 
Pgs. 157-160 

IX. Discussion Topics  
A. Selection of Gate Access Control Services Vendors  



Page 3 of 3 
 

X. Supervisors’ Requests  
XI. Audience Comments (limited to 3 minutes per individual for non-

agenda items) 
 

XII. Action Items Summary  
XIII. Meeting Matrix Summary  
XIV. Next Workshop Confirmation or Cancellation: March 5 at 

6:00PM 
 

XV. Next Meeting Quorum Check: March 16 at 6:00 PM 
 

Todd Caprita  IN PERSON  REMOTE  NO 

Walter Repak  IN PERSON  REMOTE  NO 

Karen Young  IN PERSON  REMOTE  NO 

Pawel Szeszko  IN PERSON  REMOTE  NO 

James Kendig  IN PERSON  REMOTE  NO 

 

XVI. Adjournment  

 

 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 



BEACH COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

NOTICE OF BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR MEETING  
Notice is hereby given that a 

regular meeting of the Board of 
Supervisors of the Beach Com-
munity Development District (the 
“District”) will be held on Mon-
day, February 9, 2026, at 6:00 
p.m. at 12788 Meritage Blvd. Jack-
sonville, FL 32246.  The purpose 
of the meeting is to discuss any 
topics presented to the board for 
consideration.

Copies of the agenda may be 
obtained from the District Man-
ager, Vesta District Services, 250 
International Parkway, Suite 208, 
Lake Mary, Florida 32746, Tele-
phone (321) 263-0132, Ext. 193.  

The meeting is open to the pub-
lic and will be conducted in accor-
dance with the provisions of Flor-
ida law for community develop-
ment districts.  The meeting may 
be continued in progress without 
additional notice to a date, time, 
and place to be specified on the 
record at the meeting.  There may 
be occasions when Staff and/or 
Supervisors may participate by 
speaker telephone.

Pursuant to provisions of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act, 
any person requiring special 
accommodations to participate in 
the meeting is asked to advise the 
District Manager’s office at least 
forty-eight (48) hours before the 
meeting by contacting the Dis-
trict Manager at (321) 263-0132, 
Ext. 193.  If you are hearing or 
speech impaired, please contact 
the Florida Relay Service at 711, 
for assistance in contacting the 
District Manager’s office. 

A person who decides to appeal 
any decision made at the meeting, 
with respect to any matter con-
sidered at the meeting, is advised 
that a record of the proceedings is 
needed and that accordingly, the 
person may need to ensure that 
a verbatim record of the proceed-
ings is made, including the testi-
mony and evidence upon which 
the appeal is to be based.
Beach Community 
Development District
David McInnes, District Manager
(321) 263-0132, Ext. 193
Jan. 29	  00 (26-00596D)



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 2 



12788 Meritage Blvd, Jacksonville, FL 32246,
USA

Created on Page 1 of 24

Dear Tamaya,

As part of our ongoing commitment to providing exceptional landscape maintenance services, I am

pleased to provide our latest Client Communication Report. During my recent visit to your property, I

was able to assess the following areas of recent accomplishment on your property. 

In this report, you will find a high-level overview of our recent accomplishments on your property,

including the completion of specific projects and any notable highlights that showcase the beauty

and health of your landscape. We also provide insights into ongoing tasks, giving you a clear picture

of our continuous efforts to maintain and enhance your outdoor spaces.

Moreover, we have identified several opportunities that could further elevate the aesthetic and

functional value of your property. These suggestions are carefully curated based on our expert

assessment and your unique landscape needs, aiming to deliver the best possible outcomes for your

environment.

As your trusted advisor, my goal is to ensure transparent and effective communication, offering you

peace of mind that your landscape is in capable hands. Should you have any questions or wish to

discuss any aspect of the report, please do not hesitate to reach out to me directly.

Thank you for your continued trust in our services. We look forward to working together to create and

maintain a landscape that exceeds your expectations.

Warm regards,
William Allen Flannery, CRM



12788 Meritage Blvd, Jacksonville, FL 32246,
USA

Created on Page 2 of 24

Client Communication Report
Tamaya

Reported On:

February 04, 2026

Property Size:

70.77 Acres

Report By:

William Allen Flannery

Property Name:

Beach CDD (Tamaya)



12788 Meritage Blvd, Jacksonville, FL 32246,
USA

Created on Page 3 of 24

Client Communication Report

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR PROPERTY ENHANCEMENTS
1. We’ve been exploring ways to create an even stronger, more inviting statement at the front entrance gate
area of the community—and we’ve developed what we believe is a really good idea to enhance this key
space.
The entrance gate is the very first impression everyone experiences: homeowners returning home,
guests arriving for events, and constituents visiting the clubhouse or amenities. A refreshed, thoughtfully
designed entrance can deliver that warm, welcoming feeling right from the start—boosting community
pride, improving curb appeal, and signaling the care and attention to detail that define your neighborhood.
We feel this is a much-needed upgrade that will provide lasting impact: a more polished, vibrant, and
hospitable gateway that makes everyone feel instantly at home and impressed.
The best part? We can
definitely apply the $10,000 Enhancement credit toward this project, making it an even more cost-effective
opportunity to achieve meaningful improvements without straining the budget. This credit is a fantastic
resource for exactly these kinds of value-adding enhancements, and it aligns perfectly with our vision for a
welcoming beautiful entrance.

NOTES TO OWNER/CLIENT
1. We wanted to take a moment to share a bit about our philosophy and maintenance approach for the
ornamental grasses in your landscape. You may be more accustomed to seeing grasses cut back heavily
each year or shaped into tight, formal mounds. However, our method is intentionally different—and we
believe it’s better for both the health of the plants and the overall aesthetic of your garden.
We allow the
grasses to develop and maintain their natural, graceful form. This means we avoid aggressive shearing or
cutting them back to the ground annually. Instead, we periodically “skirt” the plants by selectively removing
only the older, spent, or untidy foliage and stems around the outer edges and base. This light, targeted
grooming keeps the clumps looking tidy and prevents a buildup of dead material while preserving the
plant’s inherent architecture, movement, and seasonal interest.
Why we prefer this method:
• It promotes
healthier plants by reducing stress and allowing the grasses to photosynthesize more effectively throughout
the seasons.
• It enhances natural beauty—the flowing, organic shapes and textures that ornamental
grasses are known for, including their winter structure and wildlife benefits.
• It’s lower maintenance in the
long run, aligning with sustainable practices and reducing the need for drastic interventions.
We’ll monitor
the grasses closely and perform skirting as needed (typically once or twice a year, depending on the variety
and growth), always with an eye toward keeping everything looking its best while staying true to their
natural habits.
2. As part of our ongoing commitment to the health and long-term beauty of your landscape, we’d like to
share a couple of specific tasks and recommendations related to your trees.
Removal of Outdated Tree
Straps
One routine item our production team will handle is the careful removal of any tree straps (or ties)
that are no longer needed. These are often installed during planting to provide temporary support while
roots establish. Once the tree is stable and self-supporting, leaving straps in place can restrict natural trunk
movement (which helps build strength) or even girdle the bark as the tree grows. Removing them promptly
promotes healthier development and prevents potential long-term damage. We’ll inspect each tree and
remove only those that have served their purpose.
Recommendation for Oak Tree Evaluation
During our
recent visits, we’ve noticed that some of your oak trees appear to be showing signs of stress or declining
health (such as thinning canopy, unusual leaf discoloration, wilting, or other indicators common in Florida
oaks). To ensure we address any underlying issues early—whether related to disease, pests, soil conditions,
or other factors—we strongly recommend having these trees evaluated by a certified arborist. An expert
assessment can provide a clear diagnosis, treatment options if needed, and peace of mind for the future
vitality of your landscape.



12788 Meritage Blvd, Jacksonville, FL 32246,
USA

Created on Page 4 of 24

3. At The Greenery, we believe the entrance to your property sets the tone for every visitor, resident, or 
constituent who arrives. A fresh, well-maintained layer of mulch in these high-visibility areas plays a key role 
in creating that warm, welcoming, and polished first impression. Fresh mulch instantly refreshes garden 
beds, provides clean definition around plants and pathways, and delivers a vibrant, cared-for look that 
signals attention to detail. Beyond aesthetics, it supports plant health by retaining moisture, suppressing 
weeds, moderating soil temperatures, and protecting roots—benefits that are especially valuable in 
Orlando’s warm, humid climate. To help maintain this inviting appearance year-round, we’d like to explore 
options with you that allow us to keep at least the entrance areas (and any other priority zones you identify) 
in top shape.
4. During our recent site visit, we closely inspected your tall Cypress trees and noticed signs that suggest a 
possible infestation of spider mites. These tiny pests (related to spiders, not insects) are common on cypress 
varieties in our climate, especially during periods of heat and stress. They feed by piercing the needles and 
sucking out plant sap, which can lead to stippling (tiny yellow or bronze spots), a dull or bronzed 
appearance to the foliage, needle discoloration, fine webbing in severe cases, and gradual thinning or 
browning if left unchecked. As your trusted landscape partner, we prioritize the long-term health and 
vibrancy of your property’s plants. To address this early and protect the trees from further damage, we 
recommend applying a targeted insecticide treatment (such as a miticide or horticultural oil/insecticidal 
soap formulation appropriate for cypress). This proactive step can effectively control the population, 
minimize stress on the trees, and help restore their natural lush appearance. We’ll use products and 
methods that align with best practices for safety, efficacy, and environmental responsibility.
5. we’ve observed clear signs of frost damage on your Tinder plants. This typically appears as browned, 
wilted, or crispy leaves and stems—common after temperatures dip low enough to form ice crystals in 
tender plant tissues. While it’s natural to want to tidy things up by removing the damaged parts right away, 
our recommended approach is to leave the frost-damaged foliage and stems attached for now. Resist the 
urge to prune at this time. Here’s why this is the safer, more effective method: • The dead or damaged 
material acts as a natural insulator, protecting the underlying live tissue (including buds, stems, and roots) 
from any additional cold stress if we see more chilly nights. • Pruning too early can stimulate new tender 
growth, which is highly vulnerable to future frosts and could set the plant back further or even cause greater 
loss. • Waiting allows the full extent of the damage to become visible. In spring, once warmer weather arrives 
and new growth emerges, we’ll be able to clearly see what’s alive and make precise, safe cutbacks—
removing only the truly dead portions without risking healthy tissue. This patient strategy gives your Tinder 
plants the best chance to recover fully and bounce back strong.
6. During our recent maintenance visits to the clubhouse property, we’ve closely evaluated the shrubs in the 
parking lot area. Unfortunately, several of these shrubs are showing clear signs of complete failure or 
advanced age-related decline. Issues include extensive dieback, sparse foliage, root problems, or overall 
poor vigor that make meaningful recovery unlikely—even with intensive care. In our professional assessment, 
the most effective and sustainable solution is to remove the affected shrubs and replace them with healthy, 
appropriate new plantings. This approach will: • Restore a polished, welcoming appearance to this high-
visibility entrance and parking area, enhancing first impressions for residents, guests, and visitors.

• Improve overall site safety and functionality (e.g., better sight lines, reduced trip hazards from dead
branches).
• Prevent further decline that could spread to nearby plants or increase long-term maintenance
costs.
• Allow us to select more resilient, varieties suited to the location’s sun exposure, soil conditions,
irrigation, and traffic—ensuring better performance and lower future replacement needs.
We’d love the
opportunity to discuss this with you in more detail.



12788 Meritage Blvd, Jacksonville, FL 32246,
USA

Created on Page 5 of 24

1.
RECOMMENDATIONS FOR PROPERTY ENHANCEMENT
Created On February 04, 2026 by William Allen Flannery

We’ve been exploring ways to create an even stronger, more
inviting statement at the front entrance gate area of the
community—and we’ve developed what we believe is a really
good idea to enhance this key space.
The entrance gate is the very first impression everyone
experiences: homeowners returning home, guests arriving for
events, and constituents visiting the clubhouse or amenities. A
refreshed, thoughtfully designed entrance can deliver that warm,
welcoming feeling right from the start—boosting community
pride, improving curb appeal, and signaling the care and
attention to detail that define your neighborhood.
We feel this is a much-needed upgrade that will provide lasting
impact: a more polished, vibrant, and hospitable gateway that
makes everyone feel instantly at home and impressed.
The best part? We can definitely apply the $10,000 Enhancement
credit toward this project, making it an even more cost-effective
opportunity to achieve meaningful improvements without
straining the budget. This credit is a fantastic resource for exactly
these kinds of value-adding enhancements, and it aligns
perfectly with our vision for a welcoming beautiful entrance.

Note Attachments



12788 Meritage Blvd, Jacksonville, FL 32246,
USA

Created on Page 6 of 24



12788 Meritage Blvd, Jacksonville, FL 32246,
USA

Created on Page 7 of 24



12788 Meritage Blvd, Jacksonville, FL 32246,
USA

Created on Page 8 of 24



12788 Meritage Blvd, Jacksonville, FL 32246,
USA

Created on Page 9 of 24



12788 Meritage Blvd, Jacksonville, FL 32246,
USA

Created on Page 10 of 24

1.
NOTES TO OWNER/CLIENT
Created On February 03, 2026 by William Allen Flannery Created On Site

We wanted to take a moment to share a bit about our philosophy
and maintenance approach for the ornamental grasses in your
landscape. You may be more accustomed to seeing grasses cut
back heavily each year or shaped into tight, formal mounds.
However, our method is intentionally different—and we believe it’s
better for both the health of the plants and the overall aesthetic of
your garden.
We allow the grasses to develop and maintain their natural,
graceful form. This means we avoid aggressive shearing or
cutting them back to the ground annually. Instead, we
periodically “skirt” the plants by selectively removing only the
older, spent, or untidy foliage and stems around the outer edges
and base. This light, targeted grooming keeps the clumps looking
tidy and prevents a buildup of dead material while preserving the
plant’s inherent architecture, movement, and seasonal interest.
Why we prefer this method:
• It promotes healthier plants by reducing stress and allowing the
grasses to photosynthesize more effectively throughout the
seasons.
• It enhances natural beauty—the flowing, organic shapes and
textures that ornamental grasses are known for, including their
winter structure and wildlife benefits.
• It’s lower maintenance in the long run, aligning with sustainable
practices and reducing the need for drastic interventions.
We’ll monitor the grasses closely and perform skirting as needed
(typically once or twice a year, depending on the variety and
growth), always with an eye toward keeping everything looking its
best while staying true to their natural habits.

Note Attachments



12788 Meritage Blvd, Jacksonville, FL 32246,
USA

Created on Page 11 of 24



12788 Meritage Blvd, Jacksonville, FL 32246,
USA

Created on Page 12 of 24



12788 Meritage Blvd, Jacksonville, FL 32246,
USA

Created on Page 13 of 24

2.
NOTES TO OWNER/CLIENT
Created On February 03, 2026 by William Allen Flannery Created On Site

As part of our ongoing commitment to the health and long-term
beauty of your landscape, we’d like to share a couple of specific
tasks and recommendations related to your trees.
Removal of Outdated Tree Straps
One routine item our production team will handle is the careful
removal of any tree straps (or ties) that are no longer needed.
These are often installed during planting to provide temporary
support while roots establish. Once the tree is stable and self-
supporting, leaving straps in place can restrict natural trunk
movement (which helps build strength) or even girdle the bark as
the tree grows. Removing them promptly promotes healthier
development and prevents potential long-term damage. We’ll
inspect each tree and remove only those that have served their
purpose.
Recommendation for Oak Tree Evaluation
During our recent visits, we’ve noticed that some of your oak trees
appear to be showing signs of stress or declining health (such as
thinning canopy, unusual leaf discoloration, wilting, or other
indicators common in Florida oaks). To ensure we address any
underlying issues early—whether related to disease, pests, soil
conditions, or other factors—we strongly recommend having
these trees evaluated by a certified arborist. An expert
assessment can provide a clear diagnosis, treatment options if
needed, and peace of mind for the future vitality of your
landscape.

Note Attachments



12788 Meritage Blvd, Jacksonville, FL 32246,
USA

Created on Page 14 of 24



12788 Meritage Blvd, Jacksonville, FL 32246,
USA

Created on Page 15 of 24



12788 Meritage Blvd, Jacksonville, FL 32246,
USA

Created on Page 16 of 24

3.
NOTES TO OWNER/CLIENT
Created On February 03, 2026 by William Allen Flannery Created On Site

At The Greenery, we believe the entrance to your property sets the
tone for every visitor, resident, or constituent who arrives. A fresh,
well-maintained layer of mulch in these high-visibility areas plays
a key role in creating that warm, welcoming, and polished first
impression.
Fresh mulch instantly refreshes garden beds, provides clean
definition around plants and pathways, and delivers a vibrant,
cared-for look that signals attention to detail. Beyond aesthetics,
it supports plant health by retaining moisture, suppressing weeds,
moderating soil temperatures, and protecting roots—benefits that
are especially valuable in Orlando’s warm, humid climate.
To help maintain this inviting appearance year-round, we’d like to
explore options with you that allow us to keep at least the
entrance areas (and any other priority zones you identify) in top
shape.

Note Attachments



12788 Meritage Blvd, Jacksonville, FL 32246,
USA

Created on Page 17 of 24



12788 Meritage Blvd, Jacksonville, FL 32246,
USA

Created on Page 18 of 24



12788 Meritage Blvd, Jacksonville, FL 32246,
USA

Created on Page 19 of 24

4. NOTES TO OWNER/CLIENT
Created On February 03, 2026 by William Allen Flannery Created On Site

During our recent site visit, we closely inspected your tall Cypress 
trees and noticed signs that suggest a possible infestation of 
spider mites. These tiny pests (related to spiders, not insects) are 
common on cypress varieties in our climate, especially during 
periods of heat and stress. They feed by piercing the needles and 
sucking out plant sap, which can lead to stippling (tiny yellow or 
bronze spots), a dull or bronzed appearance to the foliage, 
needle discoloration, fine webbing in severe cases, and gradual 
thinning or browning if left unchecked.
As your trusted landscape partner, we prioritize the long-term 
health and vibrancy of your property’s plants. To address this 
early and protect the trees from further damage, we recommend 
applying a targeted insecticide treatment (such as a miticide or 
horticultural oil/insecticidal soap formulation appropriate for 
cypress). This proactive step can effectively control the 
population, minimize stress on the trees, and help restore their 
natural lush appearance. We’ll use products and methods that 
align with best practices for safety, efficacy, and environmental 
responsibility.

Note Attachments



12788 Meritage Blvd, Jacksonville, FL 32246,
USA

Created on Page 20 of 24



12788 Meritage Blvd, Jacksonville, FL 32246,
USA

Created on Page 21 of 24

5.
NOTES TO OWNER/CLIENT
Created On February 03, 2026 by William Allen Flannery Created On Site

we’ve observed clear signs of frost damage on your Tinder plants.
This typically appears as browned, wilted, or crispy leaves and
stems—common after temperatures dip low enough to form ice
crystals in tender plant tissues.
While it’s natural to want to tidy things up by removing the
damaged parts right away, our recommended approach is to
leave the frost-damaged foliage and stems attached for now.
Resist the urge to prune at this time. Here’s why this is the safer,
more effective method:
• The dead or damaged material acts as a natural insulator,
protecting the underlying live tissue (including buds, stems, and
roots) from any additional cold stress if we see more chilly nights.
• Pruning too early can stimulate new tender growth, which is
highly vulnerable to future frosts and could set the plant back
further or even cause greater loss.
• Waiting allows the full extent of the damage to become visible.
In spring, once warmer weather arrives and new growth emerges,
we’ll be able to clearly see what’s alive and make precise, safe
cutbacks—removing only the truly dead portions without risking
healthy tissue.
This patient strategy gives your Tinder plants the best chance to
recover fully and bounce back strong.

Note Attachments



12788 Meritage Blvd, Jacksonville, FL 32246,
USA

Created on Page 22 of 24



12788 Meritage Blvd, Jacksonville, FL 32246,
USA

Created on Page 23 of 24

6.
NOTES TO OWNER/CLIENT
Created On February 03, 2026 by William Allen Flannery Created On Site

During our recent maintenance visits to the clubhouse property,
we’ve closely evaluated the shrubs in the parking lot area.
Unfortunately, several of these shrubs are showing clear signs of
complete failure or advanced age-related decline. Issues include
extensive dieback, sparse foliage, root problems, or overall poor
vigor that make meaningful recovery unlikely—even with intensive
care.
In our professional assessment, the most effective and
sustainable solution is to remove the affected shrubs and replace
them with healthy, appropriate new plantings. This approach will:
• Restore a polished, welcoming appearance to this high-visibility
entrance and parking area, enhancing first impressions for
residents, guests, and visitors.
• Improve overall site safety and functionality (e.g., better sight
lines, reduced trip hazards from dead branches).
• Prevent further decline that could spread to nearby plants or
increase long-term maintenance costs.
• Allow us to select more resilient, varieties suited to the location’s
sun exposure, soil conditions, irrigation, and traffic—ensuring
better performance and lower future replacement needs.
We’d love the opportunity to discuss this with you in more detail.

Note Attachments



12788 Meritage Blvd, Jacksonville, FL 32246,
USA

Created on Page 24 of 24

Enhancing People’s Lives Through Beautiful Landscapes



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 3 



Prepared For

BEACH CDD 
for the month of
February 2026

Amenity Manager’s 
Report

Submitted by Oliver Ingram



SOCIAL CLUBS &
PROGRAMMING

Social Clubs

Programming

If you are interested in starting a new social
club, please stop by or contact the office for
more information.

Bunco
Chapter Chatters
Tamaya Travel Social club

Emma Bolyard has concluded her Water Aerobics classes for the season and
will resume her fitness classes in January. Please keep an eye out for an email
or check the upcoming newsletter for more details about her class schedule
and offerings. If you have any questions in the meantime, you can contact
Emma directly at bolyardpmp@gmail.com.
Zumba with Tangie B- every Thursday 6:30-7:30 PM in the group fitness
room
Starting in February, Basima Salameh’s Anti-Stress Yoga and Chair Yoga
classes will no longer be held at Tamaya’s Amenity Center in the group fitness
room. She will continue offering her classes from her home, and residents
may contact her directly to inquire about scheduling and availability at (716)
479-1744.



community clubs
and social groups
community clubs

and social groups
Residents may form clubs and social groups around similar interests and will get access to the
amenities for no charge according to a schedule that is agreed upon with management.

For more information on all the active clubs and social groups in Tamaya, please contact Oliver at
oingram@vesatapropertyservices.com and visit TamayaAmenities.com for the application form.

Please note: Clubs are created and operated by residents of Tamaya and NOT by the Beach CDD,
which does not endorse or express an opinion on any Club or Social Group or on any of their
activities or publications. 

No Tamaya Club or Social Group is considered a program of the Beach CDD in anyway whatsoever.

Social Group: Bunco
Last Monday of every month

Tamaya Hall
7:00 PM

Please contact Karen Young for
more information 
and schedule at:

youngk1001@att.net

Social Group: Chapter
Chatters

Last Tuesday of every month
Tamaya Hall 

6:30 PM

Please contact Becky Farinella 
for more info and schedule at:  

fourfarinellas@comcast.net

Social Group: Travel Social
Club of Tamaya

Please contact Karen
Young for more information 

and schedule at:
youngk1001@att.net

Social Group: Lunch Bunch 
Chili’s

Tuesday, February 10th
11:30 AM – 1:30 PM

SIGN UP HERE

Please contact Paula Rodrigez 
for more information at:

ppesci@racsystems.com

mailto:youngk1001@att.net
mailto:youngk1001@att.net
https://www.signupgenius.com/go/10C0F45A8AC2EA3FCC16-61965756-lunch


Events & ProgramsEvents & Programs

Zumba With Tangie B.Zumba With Tangie B.

Come join the party!​
​

Thursday's​
6:30 PM - 7:30 PM​
Group Fitness room​

﻿$8 per class per participant.​
Zumba is a total body workout, combining all elements of fitness to include cardio, muscle

conditioning, balance, flexibility, and boosted energy to the rhythmic tunes of Latin and
international rhythms. It is uniquely designed to suit all fitness levels, but participants are

encouraged to modify to fit their own personal needs. ​
Get ready for an EXHILARATING EXPERIENCE!​

​​
A minimum of 5 people must sign up to hold the class.​

﻿
Text (352) 215-1801 to sign up for each class held on Thursdays



YEAR AT A GLANCE 2026
*Events subject to change due to weather or other circumstances beyond our control*

We welcome your feedback and any recommendations for new events you'd like to see in the future.

February Events:
2/06/26 Moonshine Happy Hour
2/08/26 Storytime & Craft Hour
2/9/26 CDD Board Meeting
2/14/26 Mardi Gras Seafood
2/28/25 Movie Night

June Events:
6/05/26 Happy Hour
6/13/26 Clark’s Critter Show
6/14/26 Storytime
6/15/26 CDD Board Meeting
6/27/26 Dueling Pianos

April Events:
4/10/26 Tamaya Happy Hour
4/11/26 Spring Garage Sale
4/12/26 Story Time
4/17/26 Trivia Night
4/25/26 Goat Yoga

May Events:
5/02/26 Kentucky Derby
5/08/26 Cinco de Mayo
5/17/26 Storytime
5/18/26 CDD Board Meeting
5/23/26 Splash Bash

July Events:
7/03/26 Happy Hour
7/12/26 Storytime & Craft Hour
7/18/26 Hawaiian Luau 
7/20/26 CDD Board Meeting

March Events:
3/06/26 St. Happy Days Happy Hour
3/08/26 Storytime & Craft Hour
3/13/26 Teen Night
3/14/26 Spring Potluck
3/16/26 CDD Board Meeting
3/28/26 Easter Event

August Events:
8/07/26 Happy Hour
8/09/26 Storytime & Craft Hour
8/15/26 Potluck
8/17/26 CDD Board Meeting
8/21/26 Trivia Night

September Events:
9/05/26 Labor Day Pool Party
9/13/26 Storytime & Craft Hour
9/21/26 CDD Board Meeting
9/26/26 Casino Night



Manager’s Notes: 
This is a reminder that if the tennis instructor, Vlad, is holding a camp or clinic and
using all four courts, please ask him to relinquish one court for resident use if he
has not already done so, as resident use of the tennis courts is always the top
priority.
We are currently experiencing very cold weather, and we would like to remind
residents that these conditions can impact plants and lawns. It is recommended
that you cover any plants that are not acclimated to colder temperatures and avoid
watering your lawn during freezing conditions, as this may cause additional
damage and could result in the need for replacement in the spring. Thank you for
helping protect your landscaping during this cold weather.
We have been receiving many questions regarding HOA matters, and while we are
always happy to help when possible, please note that Leland Management is
responsible for all HOA-related issues such as exterior changes to your home or
landscaping. We do not have access to HOA fees or information regarding
violations associated with your home. For assistance with these matters, please
contact the HOA manager, Carla Masters, at (904) 420-c0175 or via email at
cmasters@lelandmanagement.com.
Please do not attempt to outrun the gate arm at the resident entry lane. We
recently had a truck hit the gate arm and leave without notifying anyone.
Subsequently, other vehicles ran over it, causing additional damage to the gate
arm, rendering it irreparable. The CDD had to purchase a replacement, which cost
$800. If you accidentally hit the gate arm, please notify our staff so it can be
repaired or repositioned before a replacement is needed. Thank you for your
cooperation!.
We are always open to new ideas for events. If you have a recommendation,
please contact Kaylie "Assistant manager" by emailing her at:
kfitzhugh@vestapropertyservices.com
Fitness center policies and etiquette: please do not sit on equipment to browse
the internet, watch videos, listen to audio, or text; be sure to wipe down all fitness
equipment with the provided disinfectants after each use; and do not move any
heavy pieces of gym equipment without prior consent from management.



If you have questions concerning this report please email
oingram@vestapropertyservices.com.

YTD Special Events Budget



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 4 



Ron Zastrocky Beach CDD Supervisors
Prepared By : Presented To :

904.577.3075 rzastrocky@vestapropertyservices.com

FIELD OPERATIONS
REPORT

20
25

JANUARY



To Be Distributed



Event Name: Water Management - Zone 1 Thank you for Work Order
Number: 2098091 your business! Service Date: 1/27/2026 Target Pests
(if applicable): Service Notes & Observations Inspected ponds 12-22

and outfalls, Treated ponds 15 & 19-22 for invasive aquatic weeds,
Treated pond 20-22 for algae, Ponds 12-14 & 16-18 look good, Pollen
present on surface of most ponds, Please allow 7-10 days for results,
please contact me with any comments or concerns, Kindest regards,
Shea Fenske Environmental Conditions Weather: Sunny Temperature:

32.43 Wind Direction: North Wind Speed: 18.41 Humidity: 54.0000
Inspected Pond(s), Inspected OutFall Area, Treated for Algae & Invasive

Aquatic Weeds

Event Name: Water Management - Zone 2 Thank you for Work Order
Number: 2097282 your business! Service Date: 1/20/2026 Target Pests
(if applicable): Service Notes & Observations Treated ponds 2 & 10 for
minimal algae and emergent vegetation Added muckbiotics to ponds

9 & 11 to assist with water clarity Added pond dye to pond 8 to assist
with algae control Ponds 1,3,4,5,6 & 7 looked good If you have any
questions or concerns please contact me at 904-504-4689 - Eric

Walker Environmental Conditions Weather: Sunny Temperature: 40.75
Wind Direction: North Wind Speed: 1.49 Humidity: 63.0000 Muck

Digester Added, Treated for Algae & Invasive Aquatic Weeds, Inspected
Pond(s), Pond Dye Added



Facility Maintenance Report - September 2025

High Priority:

Karatas drainage – Pipe in, Need sod and leveling after the outlet of pipe. District Engineer looked at it. 
Yellowstone scheduled. Completed. 

Medium Priority:

Pool - Uneven pavers - splash pad - WIP
Pool Slide refinished completed

Low Priority:

De cobwebbing common areas - ongoing
Pressure washing – ongoing

Emergency/Random:

Routine/Periodic:

Pool
vacuum - 3x per week
check controller’s readings - daily
clean tiles - on as needed basis
Blow off pool deck - daily
Straighten chairs - daily
Take out garbage - daily
Clean 6 splash pad filters - weekly 
Clean 2 pool pump strainer baskets - weekly
Inspect pool gutter drain grates – daily
Skim gutters - daily

Tennis and basketball courts 
brushing - daily 
roll courts - weekly 
check and adjust irrigation - weekly 
spray bleach around edges for algae control - weekly 
add clay - as needed
maintain wind screens and replace and adjust nets - as needed
rake clay back into playing area - as needed 
Check and change garbage bags - daily

Fountain and fence at Beach Blvd. - check – daily
Playground - Rake mulch – when needed, Inspect playground equipment - weekly



Should  you have any questions regarding this report or if you have a
maintenance related request please contact me at the information below.

904.577.3075 rzastrocky@vestapropertyservices.com



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 5 



Date of Action 
Item 

Action Item Status 

 Field Operations Manager Section  

   
8/7/2025 FOM to research what needs to be done 

with pool pavers (repair needs if artificial 
turf is also to be installed) 

On Hold 

   

9/15/2025 FOM to inspect burned out lights around 
pool and remove mulch from around them 

Underway 

   

11/17/2025 FOM to purchase sign for tennis court 
breezeway stating to let tennis instructor 
know if tennis court usage is being requested 

Underway 

   

12/4/2025 FOM to obtain additional quotes for inside 
painting of Tamaya Hall 

 

   

12/4/2025 FOM to obtain additional quotes for 
drainage on Costas Way 

See notes under Supervisors 

   

12/4/2025 FOM and AM obtain quotes for mirrors in 
group fitness/yoga rooms 

 

   

12/4/2025 FOM obtain quote for construction of 
identified alternative storage area  

 

   

12/15/2025 FOM to obtain bids to replace tables in pool 
area 
 

 

   

12/15/2025 FOM to check operationability of new 
pedestrian gates 

 

   

1/8/2026 FOM to request Ruppert Landscape trim 
cord grasses and shrubbery at Meritage 
Roundabout and intersection of Meritage & 
Cassia ASAP 

 

   

2/5/2026 FOM to check proximity of lights via 
JAX ordinance and obtain number of 
trees to remove and quote for removal 

 



   

2/5/2026 FOM to discuss with The Greenery, Inc. 
ideas about creating a “serpentine” area so 
that if needed residents can exit in this path. 

 

   

 Amenity Manger Section  
   

6/16/2025 AM and FOM to get a quote from AT&T 
for internet service 

Underway-- Still trying to get 
through to anyone at their call 
center.; 9/26: Unable to get call 
back 

   
8/18/2025 AM to attempt to locate a swim school who 

do not rely on college students as instructors 
Underway--Needs Board 
direction. 

   
12/4/2025 AM and FOM obtain quotes for mirrors in 

group fitness/yoga rooms 
 

   
12/15/2025 AM to establish a chart (including 

measurements) showing locations of table 
and chair locations in Tamaya Hall. 
 

Underway 

   
2/5/2026 AM to send out survey regarding pickleball 

courts and have results for the March 
workshop 

 

   
2/5/2025 AM to send out an E-Blast and Post Flyer in 

Breezeway regarding Summer Severe 
Weather Suggestions 

 

   
2/5/2025 AM to obtain updated quotes from the 

British Swim School 
Underway 

   
 District Manager Section  

   
3/17/2025 DM to send Mike V. email on pending 

projects after each meeting 
 

Ongoing--started on 3/21/2025; 
4/22/2024; 5/20/2025; 6/17/2025 
 
6/20: Email from Mike regarding 
meeting on Phase IV repairs. 
7/27, 8/4: Follow up with Mike 
V. 8/22: Email to Mike 

   
7/21/2025 DM to contact DE and obtain a proposal for 

work to be done on Bastia Court for 
drainage problem 

7/22: Email to Scott; 8/23: 
Follow up email sent 



   
1/12/2026 DM to send Vlad a letter to document that 

Board is okay with him using all courts and 
will release them upon request of residents 
 

Done 

   
2/5/2026 DM to discuss with DE the feasibility of a 

truck entrance lane at Gate House 
 

   
 District Engineer Section  
   

2/19/2024 DE to inquiry as to COJ maintaining west 
side of Tamaya Boulevard 

2/26/2024: Initial internal 
response from DE 

   
5/20/2024 DE to determine and report back to Board 

what needs to be done with respect to 
turning landscape maintenance of Tamaya 
Boulevard over to COJ (e.g. does landscape 
and irrigation need to be removed before 
COJ will take over the maintenance of the 
roadway 

Needs to be returned to sod and 
possibly trees 

   
2/5/2026 DE to evaluate gate entrance for a Truck 

Gate 
 

   
 District Counsel Section  

   
10/20/2025 DC to write letter to Holland Underway 

   
 Board of Supervisors Section  

   
7/3/2025 Supervisor Young to email DC to check if 

it is possible to limit TekControl contact to 
adults only (so children cannot have access) 

 

Underway 

   
7/3/2025 Supervisor Young to check with 

TekControl to see if access to the app could 
be limited to adults only 

Underway 

   
7/3/2025 Vice Chair Szeszko to email DM the quote 

on the night lighting assessment for the pool 
 

   
8/7/2025 Supervisor Young to work with resident 

and FOM to obtain more quotes for mailbox 
refinishing 

Done 



   
10/2/2025 Supervisor Repak to contact COJ CC 

regarding speed bumps, speed device and 
JSO 

 

   
10/2/2025 All Supervisors are to send punch list of 

items for all phases to DM to send to Mike 
V. 

Done 

   
2/5/2026 Vice Chair Szeszko to revise current 

janitorial contract to include guard house 
cleaning 

 

   
2/5/2026 Vice Chair Szeszko contacting “Hard 

Scape” vendor for quote on cubic yards for 
drainage in Costas Way 

 

   
   

 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 6 



BEACH CDD MEETING AGENDA MATRIX 
  
 

                 M
arch 2026 

Workshop 
      3/5 

Presentations 
 

Upcoming Business Item 
• 1. Prime Stone Restoration--$1,490 

 
Supervisor Projects 

 
Chair Kendig 

• 1. Pickleball/Paddleball Striping 
• 2. Arborist/Options for Oak Trees 
• 3. Drainage on Costas Way (from 9/15/2025 

meeting) 
o 3a. Ruppert Landscape--$20,843 

(Proposal Dated 1/30/2025) 
o 3b. The Greenery, Inc.--$34,710.52 
o 3c. True Blue Lawncare, Inc.--$27,500 

or $30,500/$25,500 or $28,500 
• 4. Mirrors in Yoga/Group Fitness Room 
• 5. Truck Gate Entrance (from 1/12/2026 

meeting) 
• 6. Construction Entrance (from 1/12/2026 

meeting) 
 
Supervisor Young 

• 1. Capital Improvement Plan Projects 
• 2. Air Fryer Capable Warming Oven (Tamaya 

Hall) 
• 3. Tamaya Hall Renovation Proposal Options 

o 5a. Ervin Lovett Miller-$19,700 plus 
o 5b. (2nd Quote Needed) 
o 5c. (3rd Quote Needed) 

• 4. Tamaya Facility Rental Agreement 
• 5. Roving Patrol vs. CCTV 
• 6. Fitness Room TV (Amazon Stick) 

 
 
 

 
 

 
• 1. Exhibits sent to Jackie on 2/6 

 
 
 
 

• 1. AM to provide results of survey (Action Item) 
• 2. Exhibit 14 from 2/5 workshop 
• 2. Ron to obtain quotes for removal of certain trees 

 
• 3a. Exhibit 15 of 2/5 workshop 

 
• 3b. Exhibit 16 of 2/5 workshop 

 
• 3c. Exhibit 17 of 2/5 workshop 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

• 4. Exhibit 25 from 2/5 workshop 
 
 
 
 
 



BEACH CDD MEETING AGENDA MATRIX 
  

 

 
Vice Chair Szeszko 

• 1. Brainstorm—Other Cost Savings Initiative 
• 2. Community Survey—Ranking of Capital 

Improvement Projects in ($150K in CRF FY 
26 Budget) 

• 3. Janitorial Services 
o 9a. Quality Cleaning by Viktoriia (w/ 

Revised Scope of Work)—from 
1/12/2026 meeting 

 
Supervisor Repak 

• 1. Gate Access Control  
• 2. Security 

 
Supervisor Caprita 

• 1. Timing of Irrigation Cycles, Irrigation 
Inspection Reports and Irrigation Inspections 

 
Pending from Prior Workshop(s) 
 
Discussion Items 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• 9a. Exhibit 26 from the 2/5 workshop 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



BEACH CDD MEETING AGENDA MATRIX 
  

 

 

 

 

 

                    M
arch 2026 

Regular 
Meeting: 

3/16 

Vendor Reports 
 
Presentations 
 
Consent Agenda Items 

• 1. Minutes 
o 1a. Workshop—3/5/2026 
o 1b.  Regular Meeting—2/09/2026 

• 2.Unaudited Financials 
o 2a. January 2026 
o 2b. February 2026 

 
Business Items 
 
Discussions 

 
Staff Reports 

• District Manager 
o 1. Resident(s) Subject to Disciplinary 

Action  
o 2. Incident Report Tracker 
o 3. Action Item Report 
o 4. Meeting Matrix 

 
• District Counsel 

 
• District Engineer  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



BEACH CDD MEETING AGENDA MATRIX 
  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

U
nscheduled Item

s 

 

Presentations 
 
Consent Agenda Items 
 
Business Items 
 
Discussions (Workshop) 

 
Public Hearing  
 
Vendor Reports 
 
Closed Session 

• Gate Access Control Post Orders 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



BEACH CDD MEETING AGENDA MATRIX 
  

Enhancements to Be Considered During FY 2027 Budget Review  
• Pickleball Courts ($145,890; discussed at 1/2/2025 workshop—

exhibit 10 of the agenda package) 
 

• Playground Shade ($35,000; discussed at 1/2/2025 workshop—
exhibit 11 of the agenda package) 

 

• RFID Technology for Entry Gate ($5,600; discussed at 1/2/2025 
workshop—exhibit 19 of the agenda package) 

 

• Pickleball Courts ($$83,066.40 (Duval Asphalt) or $76,000 (Carson 
Vandeven); discussed at the 6/5/2025 workshop—exhibit 12 of the 
agenda package) 

 

• Dog Park 4’ Fence ($25,160; discussed at the 7/3/2025 workshop--
exhibit 11 of the agenda package)  & 5’ fence ($29,352; discussed at 
the 7/3/2025 workshop--exhibit 12 of the agenda package) 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



BEACH CDD MEETING AGENDA MATRIX 
  

MAJOR CONTRACT VENDOR NAME/SERVICE  
EXPIRATION DATE/COMMENTS 

  
AED Lease-Purchase/Cintas Ending 11/2026 
  
Amenity Management/Vesta Property Services 9/30/2028 (60 days) 
  
Aquatic Management/Lake Doctors 10/1/2025-9/30/2026 (30 days) 
  
Arbitrage Services/LLS Tax Solutions 2024 Series: Period ending 7/16/2026; 2015 Series : Period ending 

5/5/2027 
  
Audit Services/DMHB Fiscal Year ending 9/30/2029 
  
Criminal Background Checks/Screening One 3/15/2023-1 year auto renewal 
  
District Counsel Services/Kutak Rock LLP 12/27/2022- 
  
District Engineer Services/England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Period ending 9/30/2025 
  
District Management Services/DPFG (d/b/a Vesta District Services) 5/1/2022- 9/30/2023-1 year auto renewal 
  
Fire Alarm Monitoring & Inspection/Wayne Automatic Fire Sprinklers, Inc. 12/30/2025-12/30/2026-auto renews for 1 year four times (60 days for 

failure to perform; 30 days without cause) 
  
Gym Equipment Lease/American Capital 10/1/2023-9/30/2028 
  
Janitorial Services—Quality Cleaning by Viktoriia LLC 9/30/2025 – 1 year auto renewal 5 times (30 days) 
  
Landscape Maintenance/Tree Amigos Outdoor Services, Inc. 7/1/2023-6/30/2026 (60 days for failure to perform; 30 days without 

cause) 
  
Pest Control/Turner Pest Control 3/23/2017- 
  
Refuse Removal/GFL Environmental) 10/1/2028 (auto renewal for 3 years--no less than 90 days notice) 
  
Security Guard Service/Advanced Security Specialist & Consulting LLC 6/14/2024- (30 days) 
  



BEACH CDD MEETING AGENDA MATRIX 
  

Towing Service/Adkinson Towing 5/1/2025- 
  
Vending Machine Services/Purpose Vending 3/31/2025- 
  
Website Hosting/Campus Suite 4/1/2022-9/30/2022; 1 year auto renewal 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 7 



MINUTES OF MEETING 1 

BEACH 2 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 3 

 The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Beach Community Development District 4 
was held on Monday, January 12, 2026 at 6:00 p.m., at 12788 Meritage Blvd., Jacksonville, FL 32246. 5 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS – Roll Call 6 

Mr. McInnes called the meeting to order and conducted roll call. 7 

Present and constituting a quorum were:  8 

James Kendig Board Supervisor, Chairman 9 
Pawel Szeszko Board Supervisor, Vice Chairman 10 
Karen Young  Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 11 
Todd Caprita (joined in progress) Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 12 
Walter Repak Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 13 

Also, present were: 14 

David McInnes District Manager, Vesta District Services 15 
Wes Haber (via phone) District Counsel, Kutak Rock 16 
Oliver Ingram Amenity Manager, Vesta Property Services 17 
Ron Zastrocky Field Operations Manager, Vesta Property Services 18 
Jason Davidson Regional General Manager, Vesta Property Services 19 
Annalee Lansang Resident 20 
Neha Narvla Resident 21 
Antti Hyytinen Resident 22 
Robert DeVincents Resident 23 
 24 

The following is a summary of the discussions and actions taken at the January 12, 2026 Beach CDD Board 25 
of Supervisors Regular Meeting. Audio for this meeting is available upon public records request by 26 
emailing PublicRecords@vestapropertyservices.com.    27 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS – Pledge of Allegiance  28 

Supervisor Kendig led all present in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance. 29 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS – Audience Comments – (limited to 3 minutes per individual for agenda 30 
items) 31 

There being no audience comments, the next item followed. 32 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Exhibit 1: Presentation of Proof of Publication(s) 33 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Landscape RFP – organized alphabetically 34 

A. Exhibit 2: Current Contract – Tree Amigos 35 

B. Exhibit 3: RFP Approved by the Board of Supervisors at the 10/20/2025 Meeting – as edited by 36 
District Counsel 37 

C. Evaluation & Scoring Criteria 38 

D. Bland Landscaping – Under Separate Cover 39 

E. Brightview – Under Separate Cover 40 

mailto:PublicRecords@vestapropertyservices.com


Beach CDD  January 12, 2026 
Regular Meeting  Page 2 of 6 

F. Greenery, Inc., The – Under Separate Cover 41 

G. Ruppert Landscape – Under Separate Cover 42 

H. United Land Services - Under Separate Cover 43 

I. Yardnique, The - Under Separate Cover 44 

J. Yellowstone Landscape – Under Separate Cover 45 

Mr. Haber led the discussion on the landscape RFP and the proposals. Discussion ensued among 46 
the Board members regarding the proposals with each Board member providing their scores and 47 
reasonings, and revised scorings. 48 

The final scores were as follows: 49 

1. Bland Landscaping Company – 255 50 

2. The Greenery, Inc – 418 51 

3. Ruppert Landscaping – 237 52 

4. Yardnique, Inc. – 298 53 

5. United Land Services – 389 54 

6. Yellowstone Landscape – 362 55 

7. Brightview Landscaping – 404  56 

On a MOTION by Mr. Kendig, SECONDED by Mr. Szeszko, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved 57 
the scoring as noted and directed staff to send notice of award to The Greenery, Inc. and to notify the others 58 
of the decision, for the Beach Community Development District. 59 

 The motion was amended to included wording for a 3-year contract. 60 

On a MOTION by Mr. Kendig, SECONDED by Mr. Szeszko, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved 61 
the scoring as noted and directed staff to send notice of award to The Greenery, Inc. for a 3-year contract 62 
and to notify the others of the decision, for the Beach Community Development District. 63 

Mr. McInnes provided a brief overview of the next steps in the process for contracting with a new 64 
vendor. Discussion ensued. 65 

On a MOTION by Mr. Kendig, SECONDED by Mr. Szeszko, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board recessed 66 
the regular meeting at approximately 7:03 p.m. for the purpose of convening the public hearing on Amenity 67 
Rates, Fees and Deposits, for the Beach Community Development District. 68 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Public Hearing – Amenity Rates, Fees and Deposits 69 

A. Open the Public Hearing 70 

On a MOTION by Mr. Kendig, SECONDED by Mr. Szeszko, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board opened 71 
the public hearing, for the Beach Community Development District. 72 

B. Exhibit 4: Presentation of Amenity Rates, Fees and Deposits 73 

Supervisor Szeszko provided a brief overview of the purpose for the public hearing. 74 

 75 



Beach CDD  January 12, 2026 
Regular Meeting  Page 3 of 6 

C. Public Comments 76 

There being no public comments, the next item followed. 77 

D. Close the Public Hearing 78 

On a MOTION by Mr. Kendig, SECONDED by Mr. Szeszko, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board closed 79 
the public hearing at approximately 7:04 p.m. and reconvened the regular meeting, for the Beach 80 
Community Development District. 81 

E. Exhibit 5: Consideration & Adoption of Resolution 2026-04, Adoption of Amenity Rates, Fees 82 
and Deposits 83 

On a MOTION by Mr. Kendig, SECONDED by Mr. Szeszko, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board adopted 84 
Resolution 2026-04, Adoption of Amenity Rates, Fees and Deposits, for the Beach Community 85 
Development District. 86 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Vendor Reports 87 

A. Ruppert Landscape LLC/Tree Amigos Outdoor Services 88 

Supervisor Szeszko addressed the landscape vendor, who was not present, regarding irrigation 89 
schedules. Discussion ensued regarding irrigation. There being no representative present, the next 90 
item followed. 91 

B. Vesta Property Services 92 

1. Exhibit 6: Lifestyle Management Report 93 

2. Exhibit 7: Field Management Report 94 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Staff Reports 95 

A. District Counsel 96 

Mr. Haber had nothing to report. 97 

B. District Engineer 98 

There being no representative present, the next item followed. 99 

C. District Manager 100 

1. Resident(s) Subject to Disciplinary Action 101 

2. Complaint & Incident Management Tracker 102 

3. Exhibit 8: Action Item Report 103 

4. Exhibit 9: Meeting Matrix 104 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Consent Agenda 105 

A. Exhibit 10: Consideration for Approval – The Minutes of the Board of Supervisor Regular Meeting 106 
Held on December 15, 2025 107 

B. Exhibit 11: Consideration for Approval – The Minutes of the Board of Supervisors Workshop Held 108 
on January 8, 2026 109 

C. Exhibit 12: Consideration for Acceptance – The December 2025 Unaudited Financial Statements 110 

D. Exhibit 13: Consideration of Clear Impression Solar & Security Window Films (Fitness Room) 111 
Proposal from the 1/8/2026 Workshop (Community and Amenity Repair; Line 38) - $3,520.00 112 



Beach CDD  January 12, 2026 
Regular Meeting  Page 4 of 6 

E. Exhibit 14: Consideration of 360 Painting (Phases I & II Mailboxes) Proposal from the 1/8/2026 113 
Workshop (CIP- Future FY; Line 8) - $23,914.81 114 

F. Exhibit 15: Consideration of Quality Cleaning by Viktoriia (w/ Revised Scope of Work) Proposal 115 
from the 1/8/2026 Workshop (Amenity Cleaning; Line 49) - $2,290.00/month (05/01-08/31) & 116 
$1,760.00/month (09/01-04/30) 117 

Supervisor Kendig requested that items E and F be removed from the Consent Agenda. 118 

On a MOTION by Mr. Kendig, SECONDED by Mr. Szeszko, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved 119 
the Consent agenda, as amended, for the Beach Community Development District. 120 

Supervisor Kendig asked for information regarding a possible warranty for the work. Discussion 121 
ensued. 122 

Supervisor Kendig noted another possible option from a resident for Item F. Discussion ensued 123 
with Item F to be discussed further at the next workshop. 124 

On a MOTION by Mr. Szeszko, SECONDED by Mr. Repak, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved 125 
Item E, the Mailbox Painting proposal contingent on a 5-year warranty, for the Beach Community 126 
Development District. 127 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Business Items  128 

A. Tamaya Hall Floor Refinishing Proposal Options from the 1/8/2026 Workshop (CIP- Future FY; 129 
Line 8) 130 

Discussion ensued regarding whether to wait for a possible third quote or to negotiate the price 131 
with the preferred quote. 132 

1. Exhibit 16: Driskell’s Flooring LLC - $16,482.00 133 

2. Exhibit 17: Classy Estate Remodeling - $13,915.68 134 

3. (3rd Quote Needed) – if available 135 

On a MOTION by Mr. Szeszko, SECONDED by Mr. Kendig, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved 136 
the Driskell’s Flooring LLC proposal, at a not-to-exceed of $15,000.00, for the Beach Community 137 
Development District. 138 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Discussion Topics 139 

A. Format for Speakers During Meetings & Workshops – District Manager & District Counsel 140 

Mr. Haber provided a brief overview of the topic. 141 

B. Process for Selecting New Gate Access Control Services Vendor – District Manager 142 

Mr. McInnes provided an update and a brief overview of the topic. Discussion ensued regarding 143 
the current interim vendor and whether to maintain them as the vendor or choose a different vendor. 144 
This item was moved to the next workshop to allow RAMCO, the interim vendor, to provide a 145 
presentation of their services to the Board and residents. 146 

C. Attendance for Tennis Instruction (Lessons & Camps) – Chair Kendig 147 

Supervisor Kendig led the discussion on the attendance for tennis instruction. Discussion ensued. 148 
The Board approved the use of all of the tennis courts by Vlad during clinics and camps by residents 149 
and guests of residents. And, if a resident wanted to use a court during that time, Vlad would give 150 
up a court for their use.  151 



Beach CDD  January 12, 2026 
Regular Meeting  Page 5 of 6 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Supervisors’ Requests 152 

Supervisor Kendig requested that the following be added to his name on the Supervisor Projects 153 
section of the matrix. 154 

 Trees/Removal of Trees Blocking Light Fixtures at the CDD’s expense. 155 

 Truck Gate Entrance 156 

 Construction Entrance 157 

Supervisor Repak requested clarification on the landscape RFP regarding the raising of the trees 158 
for better clearance and visibility. Discussion ensued. 159 

Supervisor Young requested clarification on the increase in the internet bill and staff’s effort to 160 
gather pricing for other options. Discussion ensued. 161 

Supervisor Caprita provided updates on ongoing projects. 162 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Audience Comments – New Business/Non-Agenda (limited 163 
to 3 minutes per individual)  164 

Annalee Lansang noted that the retention pond at the front of the community needed to be attended to 165 
and asked if she could bring a friend to the gym who would provide her with fitness training as well as 166 
clarification on training for different activities in general. Discussion ensued. 167 
 168 
Neha Narvla requested that her son be allowed to provide tennis instruction as a means for volunteer 169 
hours and not for monetary value. Discussion ensued and the Board agreed to the request. 170 
 171 
Antti Hyytinen recommended that the Board formalize their handshake agreement with the tennis 172 
instructor vendor. 173 
 174 
Robert DeVincents noted an issue with the gates no sensing properly. Discussion ensued. 175 
 176 
The Board recessed at approximately 8:30 p.m. and resumed at approximately 8:35 p.m. 177 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Action Items Summary 178 

Available upon request. 179 

FIFTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Meeting Matrix Summary 180 

SIXTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Next Workshop Confirmation or Cancellation: February 5 181 
at 6:00PM  182 

 Confirmed 183 

SEVENTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Next Meeting Quorum Check: February 9 at 6:00 PM  184 

All five Board members stated that they would be attending the next Board meeting on February 9 185 
at 6:00 p.m. 186 

EIGHTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Adjournment 187 

Mr. McInnes asked for final questions, comments, or corrections before requesting a motion to 188 
adjourn the meeting. There being none, Mr. Kendig made a motion to adjourn the meeting. 189 

On a MOTION by Mr. Kendig, SECONDED by Mr. Repak, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board adjourned 190 
the meeting at 8:40 p.m. for the Beach Community Development District. 191 



Beach CDD  January 12, 2026 
Regular Meeting  Page 6 of 6 

*Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered 192 
at the meeting is advised that person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, 193 
including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. 194 

Meeting minutes were approved at a meeting by vote of the Board of Supervisors at a publicly noticed 195 
meeting held on February 9, 2026. 196 

 197 

 198 

 199 

 200 
Signature  Signature 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

Title: □ Secretary □ Assistant Secretary  Title: □ Chairman □ Vice Chairman 201 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 8 



 

Minutes 

  

• Presentation via ppt from RAMCO - quote forthcoming. 

A.  Consideration of Access Control - remove. 

  

B.  Selected 360 painting (2 coats) - consent agenda. 

  

C.  Selected Ideal Conditions as low bid - consent agenda. 

  

D.  Remove 

  

E.  Selected Buehler AC - consent agenda. 

  

IV.  F. Quality cleaning - Szeszko to merge into existing contract. 

  

G.  Selected Squeegee Squad - consent agenda - after pollen season. 

  

V.  Kendig 

  

1.  Pickleball - Oliver to send out survey re pickleball courts and review results next 
workshop. 

  

2. Arborist - discussed removal of trees near light poles and CDD attorney opinion - Ron to 
research proximity of light via JAX ordinance and obtain number of trees to be removed and 
obtain quote to remove. 

  



3.  Quotes have varying cubic yards - Szeszko to contact ‘hard scape’ vendor for quote. 

  

4.  Mirror in group fitness room - Ron still researching for vendor. 

  

5.  Discussed above 

  

6.  Truck gate - have district engineer evaluate for main entrance.  David please contact DE. 

  

7. Construction entrance - ask new landscape vendor for ideas creating a ‘serpentine’ area 
so that if needed residents can exit in this path.  David (HOA) to contact JEA on what they 
plan to do in this area. 

  

8.  Summer severe weather - send out via e-blast as well as post flyer in breezeway. 

  

9.  AED sign - being created by vendor. 

  

10.  Ice Machine - consent agenda - not to exceed $2000. 

  

11.  YMCA - board opted not to continue summer camp due to restriction imposed by 
YMCA on space, etc. 

  

B.  Szeszko 

1. Landscape - move to April 1 start date.. Consent agenda.   

2.  British swim school - obtain updated quote - remove Safari. 

  

3.  CCTV remove 

  



4.  Virtual gate - remove 

  

5.  Peds crosswalk - remove 

  

6.  Tamaya Facility Agreement - moved to Supv Young 

  

7.  Gate access orders - move to a special security meeting. 

  

8.  Janitorial - already discussed. 

  

(Swim school already discussed) 

  

Supv Young 

  

1. PPT re furniture - approved consent agenda for $18,500.. Remove bench - rugs to be 
determined.  Include old furniture in annual garage sale. 

2.  Tennis - consent agenda - residents only effective April 1. 

  

3.  Roving patrol - to be determined later vs CCTV. 

  

4.  TV gym - trying Amazon stick. 

  

D.  Repak 

  

1. Discussed Security quotes.   

E.  Caprita 



  

1. Working on irrigation with Ron and new landscape vendor.   

2.  Lighting for basketball - board opted not to add lighting so as not to have folks aggregate 
after dark.   

  

IV Pending - remove 

  

VII. Discussion - remove.   

  

If Ron has additional solar lights have them installed on pool access side.   

  

Storage Unit - cost of architectural drawings - on old - Karen. 

  

Movement of radar unit - good placement by Ron. 

 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 9 



TEKWAVE SOLUTIONS LLC
4575 Webb Bridge Rd, Ste 4345
Alpharetta, GA  30023
accounting@tekwavesolutions.com

Invoice

BILL TO

Beach CDD DPFG Management
250 International Pkwy., Ste 208
Lake Mary, Fla  32746

SHIP TO

Beach CDD DPFG Management
250 International Pkwy., Ste 208
Lake Mary, Fla  32746

INVOICE # DATE TOTAL DUE DUE DATE TERMS ENCLOSED

7834 01/07/2026 $1,650.00 01/22/2026 Net 15

DATE ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

CVM-301 Tamaya Community VMS -  
Additional Scanner
Proposal # 101377
01/02/2026

0 0.00 0.00

TVH-DLS-101 Mobile Drivers License and 
Barcode Scanner

1 1,500.00 1,500.00

TIM-DSU-101 Device Set Up - Per Device 1 75.00 75.00

Shipping Shipping 1 75.00 75.00

It's been a pleasure working with you!

Ways to pay

     

 

BALANCE DUE $1,650.00

View and pay



EXHIBIT 10 



TIP Use the  and  arrows below to turn the page and learn more. × 

Proposal

Club house indoor columns(12)

  NEW COLOR #COATS

CLUB HOUSE INDOOR COLUMNS(12) SUBTOTAL $1,008.71

Indoor wall in club house

Columns 1

Materials:
EXT Superpaint :

#32429780  
Beach - 32429780
- Interior
Clubhouse Walls
Itemized

360 Painting of
Jacksonville

Welcome

About Us

Insurance

About Your Project

Agreement

Certificate of
Completion


Turn Page



Proposal

1/21/26, 12:46 PM eBid - Beach

https://www.pep-cloud.com/rolesec/pepspa/ebid.html#e/6d5a9772-28f1-41fb-81dd-544b96e66241 1/3

javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)


  NEW COLOR #COATS

INDOOR WALL IN CLUB HOUSE SUBTOTAL $802.70

Small wall above double doors

Walls 2

Materials:
INT Superpaint:

1g- Simple
Door Casing
(without door)

1

Materials:
INT Superpaint Semi-Gloss :

Base Boards 1

Materials:
INT Superpaint Semi-Gloss :

1/21/26, 12:46 PM eBid - Beach

https://www.pep-cloud.com/rolesec/pepspa/ebid.html#e/6d5a9772-28f1-41fb-81dd-544b96e66241 2/3



LABOR $2,459.11

MATERIALS $534.79
TAX $0.00

  NEW COLOR #COATS

SMALL WALL ABOVE DOUBLE DOORS SUBTOTAL $76.73

Project Set up/Clean up/Prep/Repair
  NEW COLOR #COATS

PROJECT SET UP/CLEAN UP/PREP/REPAIR SUBTOTAL $1,005.76

LABOR SUBTOTAL $2,459.11

MATERIALS SUBTOTAL $534.79

GRAND TOTAL $2,993.90

Walls 2

Materials:
INT Superpaint:

Set
Up/Prep/Clean
Up

N/A 1

1/21/26, 12:46 PM eBid - Beach

https://www.pep-cloud.com/rolesec/pepspa/ebid.html#e/6d5a9772-28f1-41fb-81dd-544b96e66241 3/3



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 11 



ESTIMATE

Services qty unit price amount

E OFFICE - E023: Plumbing 1.0 $4,525.00 $4,525.00

We propose to remove existing drinking fountain on wall and cooler equipment in storage area and provide and and install ELKAY
LZSTL8WSLK FILTERED EZH20 BOTTLE FILLING STATION W/
VERSATILE BI-LEVEL ADA COOLER

Plumbing drain and water piping to be reworked in wall for new drinking fountain.

Exclusions:
Drywall wall and tile repairs

Services subtotal: $4,525.00

Ideal Conditions

Beach CBD (Tamaya)
12788 Meritage Blvd 
Jacksonville, FL 32246

 (904) 577-3075
 rzastrocky@vestapropertyservices.com

CONTACT US

1617 Rowe Ave 
Jacksonville, FL 32208

 (904) 379-8762
 jaxcoolbus@gmail.com

Service completed by: Jerry Williams, Justin Morris

ESTIMATE #65840

ESTIMATE DATE Jan 23, 2026

SERVICE DATE Jan 22, 2026

TOTAL $4,525.00

Total $4,525.00

We accept all forms of payment. Any ordered parts require a 10% down payment towards the balance of the final invoice.
It is customer's responsibility to replace filters and clear drain lines on a monthly basis, and have general maintenance performed on systems every six 
months.
Thank you for your business.

Ideal Conditions CMC1250363 http://idealconditionsjax.com 1 of 1



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 12 



Hello, this is your estimate
Location: 12788 Meritage Boulevard, Jacksonville, FL, 32246

PROJECT ID

0

Subtotal $1,794.00

Tax $0.00

CMP 5 Units +

Your Price

$1,794.00

Commercial Agreement

Accept Estimate

Summary

USA-Commercial Sale 5+(Qty: 6)

Your Price

$1,794.00

2 precision tune up visits
2 Filter changes & Drain Clearing
Total of 4 visits
%15 off parts, labor, AND diagnosis w/o repair
NO diagnostic charge with repair
NO drain line clearing charge

Visit 1 – Full Maintenance
Visit 2 – Filter Change & Drain Clear
Visit 3 – Full Maintenance
Visit 4 – Filter Change & Drain Clear

View Less

·
·
·
·
·
·

Accept Estimate

Contact Us

1/17/26, 1:02 PM Portal

https://estimate.myservicetitan.com/estimate/02iSmf4CbspoUtDPVfHWTJMGZJ6xA/191449566 1/2

https://estimate.myservicetitan.com/estimate/02iSmf4CbspoUtDPVfHWTJMGZJ6xA


Total $1,794.00

Contact Us

1/17/26, 1:02 PM Portal

https://estimate.myservicetitan.com/estimate/02iSmf4CbspoUtDPVfHWTJMGZJ6xA/191449566 2/2



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 13 



(904) 999-0816

Locally Veteran Owned & Op-
erated FREE ESTIMATE

GOOD FOR 90 DAYS

Date Emailed: 01/21/2026

Sent By:
Patrick Hill

Jax@squeegeesquad.com
Squeegee Squad
218 Lochnagar Mountain Drive
Saint Johns FL 32259

CUSTOMER
Ron Zastrocky
12788 Meritage Boulevard
Jacksonville, Florida 32246

JOB ADDRESS
Vesta Property Services
12788 Meritage Boulevard
Jacksonville, Florida 32246

Phone: (904) 355-1831
Email: rzastrocky@vestapropertyservices.com

Quoted By: 
Quote Date: 

JOB DESCRIPTION
Interior/Exterior Window Cleaning

Qty Description Unit Price Total

1 Exterior Window Cleaning $2,000.00 $2,000.00

1 Inerior/Exterior Window Cleaning $4,000.00 $4,000.00

Sub-Total $6,000.00

Tax (0%) $0.00

Total $6,000.00

Window sill wipe down is complimentary (wiping down window frames and tracks are not included, an additional 
charge may be added for such requests). If hard water stains are unnoticed at time of estimate, an additional fee may 
be added at the time of service per customer request to attempt restoration.

Payment is due when work is completed. Local Taxes may apply depending on location. A processing fee may be 
added to credit card transactions depending on your local location policies.

When selecting In/Out Window Cleaning, your screens will receive a complimentary wipe-down on both sides with 
a damp cloth. When choosing outside only window cleaning, your screens will receive a wipe-down (as described 
above) ONLY if your screens are located on the outside of the home.

Additional charges for Gutter Cleaning may be added for gutters covered by screens that Squeegee Squad was unable 
to see at the time of the estimate.

218 Lochnagar Mountain Drive

Saint Johns, Florida 32259

Phone: (904) 999-0816

Email: Jax@squeegeesquad.com



SQUEEGEE
SQUAD GLASS SAFETM - OUR CLEANING PROCESS

ROUTINE WINDOW CLEANING METHODS

Squeegee Squad window cleaners will use safe routine window glass cleaning methods as defined by and approved by the glass industry according to

the GANWIWCA Bulletin 01-0116 Proper Procedures for Cleaning Architectural Glass Products. Routine window glass cleaning includes the use of tools

and mild detergernts such as: soft cloths, strip washers, squeegees, non-abrasive pads, water-fed poles, and mild detergents.

• Routine cleaning methods will remave nornal dirt and debris that can adhere between frequent window cleaning services.

• Routine cleaning methods may not remove all stains and weathering that can occur due to infrequent cleaning or when windows are

improperly protected during construction or remodeling such as: hard water, artillery fungus spores, sap, tar, paint, adhesives, vamish,

mortar, silicone, and more.

NON-ROUTINE GLASS RESTORATION

In the event there are stubbom stains or construction debris on your windows that can not be removed with routine methods, Squeegee Squad wil

educate and inform you of non-routine restoration options to remove things like hard water, artillery fungus spores, sap, tar, paint, adhesives, varnish,

mortar, silicone, etc.

STEEL
WOOL

WINSOL

CLEARSS

Window Restoration using non-routine cleaning methods will only be performed after the homeowner or client has read an important disclosure and

understands the options, limitations, and risks involved in using tools like: metal razor blades, acids, abrasives, polishing compounds, and more.

Squeegee Squad will not use non-routine glass cleaning methods without your consent. Additional charges may be proposed if it is determined that
non-routine methods are necessary and the scope of the job is affected.

HOW TO PREPARE FOR YOUR WINDOW CLEANING

CHECKLST/NOTICE OF RESPONSIBILMES

Feel free to pull all blinds into the open (up) position.  We will not take responsibility for any aged or broken blinds.

Please take note of and Inform our crew If you have any windows with tint film applied, broken blinds, cracked

glass, tom screens, brittle removable grids, scratched glass, or any other areas that may require extra care.

Our crew will move most fumiture and put it back into the original position with the exception of pianos, or any other large
objects that would require expert moving experience to move. Please clear away any knick knacks in your window sills.

Be ready to pay by check, cash, or credit card at the completion of your service.

SOUEEGEE

SQUAD
f www.SqueegeeSquad.com Googlereviews

Check out SqueegeeSquad on Facebook!



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 14 























Matt Calderaro (Jun 23, 2023 07:47 EDT)
Matt Calderaro

https://na4.documents.adobe.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAbz43khjZLRO3A3yA-E6G8Pw95S0LHABw






























































  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 15 





















  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 16 



EXHIBIT 16A 













EXHIBIT 16B 























EXHIBIT 16C 










	1. CL
	2. Agenda Pg. 1
	3. EXHIBIT 01
	4. EXHIBIT 01 - Notice of February 9 Meeting - Run 01-29-26

	5. EXHIBIT 02
	6. EXHIBIT 02 - Vendor Reports - The Greenery, Inc. Report

	7. EXHIBIT 03
	8. EXHIBIT 03 - Vendor Reports - AM Report

	9. EXHIBIT 04
	10. EXHIBIT 04 - Vendor Reports - FOM Report

	11. EXHIBIT 05
	12. EXHIBIT 05 - Staff Reports - Action Items Report

	13. EXHIBIT 06
	14. EXHIBIT 06 - Staff Reports - Meeting Matrix

	15. EXHIBIT 07
	16. EXHIBIT 07 - Consent Agenda - January Mins.

	17. EXHIBIT 08
	18. EXHIBIT 08 - Consent Agenda - February WS Mins.

	19. EXHIBIT 09
	20. EXHIBIT 09 - Consent Agenda - Tekwave Solutions, LLC Proposal

	2. Agenda Pg. 2
	21. EXHIBIT 10
	22. EXHIBIT 10 - Consent Agenda - 360 Painting Proposal

	23. EXHIBIT 11
	24. EXHIBIT 11 - Consent Agenda - Ideal Conditions Proposal

	25. EXHIBIT 12
	26. EXHIBIT 12 - Consent Agenda - Buehler Proposal

	27. EXHIBIT 13
	28. EXHIBIT 13 - Consent Agenda - Squeegee Squad Proposal

	29. EXHIBIT 14
	30. EXHIBIT 14 - Business Items - Tree Amigos - Ex. 06-23-23

	31. EXHIBIT 15
	32. EXHIBIT 15 - Business Items - Tennis Instructor--Vlademyros Mavropoulos-Stoliarenko

	33. EXHIBIT 16
	34. EXHIBIT 16 - Business Items - Parcels Transfer
	EXHIBIT XX - Business Items - Parcels Transfer
	CDD Transfer Parcel 6
	CDD Transfer Parcel 7



	rta: 


